10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Deposition of Kiawah Island BZA Meeting

KI AWAH | SLAND
BOARD OF ZONI NG APPEALS
Decenber 16, 2024

ACGENDA

APPLI CANT/ PROPERTY OWNER: W LLI AM and
ANNE SHERRI LL

REPRESENTATI VE: RANDY RI CE
PROPERTY LOCATION: 81 Bittern Court
TMS NUMBER: 207-08-00-045

ZONING DI STRICT: R-1, Residential Zoning
District

DATE: Decenber 16, 2024

LOCATI ON: Ki awah | sl and Munici pal Center
4475 Betsy Kerrison Parkway
Ki awah | sland, South Carolina

REPORTED BY: TERI L. KENNELLY, NCRA
CERTI FI ED REALTI ME REPCORTER
CLARK BOLEN, | NC.
P.O Box 73129
Charl eston, SC 29415
843- 762- 6294
VWAV CLARKBOLEN. COM
O fice@ ar kBol en. com
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APPEARANCES

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

FRANK CASSI DY, Chair man
LI N O LEARY

J. JAY LEWS

J. PH LLI P ADAMS

LARRY ROSENFELD

MORRI S HANAN

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT:

JOHN TAYLOR, JR
DANI EL VI NCENT
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CHAI RMAN CASSI DY: Ckay. Good
afternoon, everyone. |'d like to call to order
t hi s Decenber 16th, 2024, neeting of the Town of
Ki awah | sl and Board of Zoni ng Appeal s.

| m Frank Cassidy, the board chair. In
addition to nyself, the nenbers hearing your case
today are Jay Lewis, Larry Rosenfeld, Morris
Hanan, Lin O Leary, and Phil Adans. And here
fromstaff are our planning director, John
Tayl or, and Dan Vincent fromour planning staff.
And Boone Ai ken is our |egal counsel.

Qur case rulings fromthis and any BZA
neeting are available for public review and
I nspection during normal business hours at the
Town Hal I .

Since our neeting is being conducted
virtually via Zoom please be rem nded that in
order to obtain a clean and clear record for

persons listening live, it's inportant that all

partici pants not speak over one another. 1'd
like -- if you'd |like to speak, please raise your
hand, I'll recogni ze you, and you can cone to the
m ke.

At this tine I'd like to explain to the
public the workings of the BZA. The Board of

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Zoni ng Appeal s is a quasi-judicial body,
established to interpret and grant relief from
t he zoni ng ordi nance. The Board of Zoning
Appeal s has jurisdiction over three types of
cases: Appeals, variances, which is what we'l|
be considering today, and special exceptions.

Appeal s are heard regarding
adm ni strative actions or decisions by the zoning
adm ni strator or staff. Variances nmay be granted
when strict application of the zoning ordi nance
woul d cause an unnecessary hardshi p.

This board's actions nust be based on
specific standards, as contained in SC Local
Gover nment Pl anni ng Enabling Act of 1994 and our
Town's zoni ng ordi nance.

Speci al exceptions allow the board to
permt uses if certain conditions as contained in
t he zoni ng ordi nance are net.

A sinple majority vote of the quorum
present is required to grant a variance or to
overturn the decision of the zoning adm ni strator
I n an appeal or to grant a special exception.

Because today's hearing is a public
fact-finding neeting, we are in conpliance with

t he Freedom of Informati on Act and SC Code

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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6-29-70. 15 days prior to this hearing, an
announcenent was printed in the Post and Couri er,
a sign was posted on or near the designated
property, and a notice was nailed to the
applicant or representative, to persons --
residents within 500 feet of the application, and
to parties of interest.

Per sons, organi zations, and the news
nmedi a that have requested declaration of our
neeti ng have al so been notified. These are the
only folks who are required to be served under
the Freedom of Information Act.

Qur purpose today is for interested
parties to be heard in order to assist the board
I n gathering evidence pertinent to the case. |If
menbers of the BZA feel the need for further
information to clarify a case, the board has the
authority to subpoena w t nesses.

In addition to testinony, our board has
been presented witten information submtted to
the staff by the applicant or their agent for
each case. This information is now considered to
be evidence and is entered into the pernanent
record of this body. |It's assuned that it is

conpl ete, true, and accurate.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Al so, we've been presented data
assenbl ed by the staff for the purpose of
clarifying the |location and the effect on
surroundi ng property.

Qur board is enpowered to approve,
approve with conditions, or deny a request. 1In
granting a variance, the Board of Zoning Appeal s
may attach to it such conditions regarding
| ocation, character, and other features of the
proposed building structure or use as the board
may consi der advi sable to protect established
property values in the surrounding area or to
pronote the public health, safety, and general
wel f are.

W are also authorized to defer a case
shoul d there be a need to obtain additional
I nformati on.

I f an applicant's request is approved
for a special exenption, a variance, or an appeal
of the decision by the zoning adm nistrator, they
must go to the Town of Kiawah Island to apply for
permts. Variances and speci al exceptions
granted by the BZA are valid for 12 nonths after
this neeting.

However, if an applicant's request is

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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di sapproved and they wi sh to appeal the decision
of this board concerning their case, appeals nust
be addressed to the Grcuit Court.

SC Code 6-29-820 states that the appeal
must be filed by the applicant within 30 days
after the decision of the board is nmailed to
them Failure to file an appeal within the tine
limt deprives the Court of the jurisdictionto

hear this nmatter.

For the case, staff wll present
i nformation, the applicant will present their
case, and we'll hear fromothers, if any, who nmay

Wi sh to speak. Be rem nded to direct your
coments to the board and not to the applicant or
ot her speakers.

To expedite the neeting, |I'd ask that
all persons who intend to speak today to stand,
and Boone wi ||l adm ni ster the oath.

(Cath adm ni stered to all
speakers.)

MR. Al KEN: Thank you, everyone.

M. Chairman, "Il turn it back
over.

CHAI RMAN CASSIDY: I'll now cal
case BZA-24-000022 at 81 Bittern Court.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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First we'll hear fromstaff, then the
applicant, and then others, if any. Al speakers
shoul d cone to the podium state your nane and

current address for the record before presenting

t esti nony.

"Il Timt any conments by the public to
three mnutes and the applicant will have a
chance for rebuttal, if necessary.

Dan, the floor is yours.
MR. VI NCENT: Thank you, M. Chair.

Menbers of the BZA, we have one case
t oday, case nunber BZA-24-000022. The appli cant
and property owner, WIlIliamand Anne Sherrill,
bei ng represented by Randy R ce of Rice
Architecture, are requesting a variance for the
reduction of the required 30-foot rear setback by
approxi mately 86 square feet for proposed
renovations of an existing single-famly hone.

The lot 81 Bittern Court is located in
the R 1 residential zoning district. The |ot
Size is approxi mately 24,556 square feet or .57
acres in size. The TMS nunber for the subject
property is 207-08-00-045.

Per Charl eston County records, the | ot

was acquired by WIIliamand Anne Sherrill on

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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May 15th of 2009, and the hone was constructed in
1978, according to Charleston County records.

Pursuant to the Town of Kiawah |sland's
Land Use Pl anni ng and Zoni ng Ordi nance, the R-1
zoning district does require a 25-foot front
setback off of Bittern Court, 15-foot side
set backs on either side, and a 30-foot rear
set back. The maxi rum | ot coverage for the
subj ect property is 33 percent.

Here's a zoning map of the subject
property. The adjacent properties to the south,
west, and across the |agoon are |ocated in the
R-1 zoning district, and directly across fromthe
subj ect property sits an R20 zoning district.
Here is a Charleston County G S aerial view

Staff took a few photos on
Novenber 27th, 2024. Signs were posted in
accordance to the Board of Zoning Appeals rules
and procedures. Again the request is for 86
square feet for proposed renovations. Picture of
the front. Adjacent properties across the street
and to the left. Here's the subject property,
which is the rear. A few nore pictures of the
rear and the side.

The applicant's proposed pl ans incl ude

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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renovations of the existing single-famly hone,

I ncluding relocating a staircase in the rear yard
and converting an existing open deck into
conditioned area that is currently beyond the
rear set back.

The hone is currently nonconformng in
regards to setbacks. As you can see on the slide
in front of you, the left is an existing site
plan. Portions of that site plan are encroaching
into that rear setback.

The existing staircase currently
encroaches approxinmately 15 feet, 9 inches, into
the required rear 30-foot setback. The distance
fromthe existing staircase to the rear lot |ine
Is approximately 14 feet, 3 inches. The total
encroachnent of the existing staircase is
approxi mately 70 square feet. And existing
staircase, you can see ny cursor, is this box
ri ght here.

The proposed staircase, which is the
gray area right here, it will be rel ocated
further south and will encroach approxi mtely 16
feet, 1 inches, into the required 30-foot
set back. The distance fromthe proposed

staircase to the rear lot line is approximtely

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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13 feet, 11 inches.

The total encroachnent of the proposed
staircase is approxi mtely 43 square feet. The
proposed plans reduce the encroachnent by
approxi mately 28 square feet at this particular
| ocati on.

The existing open deck, which is south,
right here, in this gray area, extends
approximately 5 feet, 5 inches into the required
rear 30-foot setback.

The proposed conditioned covered space
wi Il encroach approximately 5 feet into the
requi red rear setback. The proposed renovation
of the existing deck to screen porch is
approxi mately 11 square feet. The proposed new
condi ti oned area encroachnent is approximtely 33
square feet. The total square footage
encroachnent of the existing deck to conditioned
or covered space is approximately 44 square feet.
The total encroachnent of both the staircase and
conditioned area is approximately 86 square feet.

The applicant's current total | ot
coverage is 24.3 percent, and the applicant's
proposed plans include 7,283 square feet, with a

total proposed | ot coverage of 29.7 percent. The

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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subj ect property is allowed a nmaxi nrum coverage of
33 percent.

The BZA may grant a variance only if
exceptional circunstances exist and where
practical difficulty or uncertain -- or
unnecessary hardship is so substantial, serious,
and conpelling that relaxation of the general
restrictions ought to be granted.

No grant shall be granted unl ess the
applicant shall show and the BZA shall find that
the follow ng conditions are net.

Criteria A: There are extraordinary and
exceptional conditions pertaining to the
particul ar piece of property.

There may be extraordi nary and
exceptional conditions on this property. The
uni que shape of the ot and the orientation of
the home on the |ot are exceptional conditions.
The honme is also nonconformng in regards to
set backs.

The |l agoon is | ocated roughly 52 feet
fromthe required 30-foot rear setback. The
space between the rear lot |line and the | agoon
provi des additional screening for the hone.

Per the applicant's letter of intent,

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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quote, The lot is irregular in shape and heavily
treed. The organic shape of the easenent creates
an additional condition of not having a rear | ot
line that is parallel to the rear of the house
frame. And while the house does respond to the
change in lot profile, the logical addition fits
a 25-foot setback, nuch |ike the existing hone.

It is possible, due to the | arge nunber
of trees throughout the site, that the hone was
sinply located in the nost tree friendly
| ocati on. And since noving the house closer to
the | arge easenent had only a positive effect on
Its neighbors; regardless, there is an extensive
nonconformty that exists across nmuch of the rear
of this honme, resulting in extraordi nary and
exceptional conditions.

Criteria B: These conditions do not
generally apply to other properties in the
vicinity.

These conditions may be unique to the
subj ect property and may not generally apply to
ot her properties in the vicinity. The property
Is located in the R 1 zoning district. Adjacent
properties along Bittern Court are also | ocated

in an R-1 zoning district. The lot sits adjacent

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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to a lagoon to the north and east. Properties
across the lagoon are located in the R20
residential zoning district.

Exi sting structures in the vicinity may
or may not have simlar encroachnents based on
t hese set back standards.

Per the applicant's letter of intent,
quote, In addition to a setback requirenent of 30
feet to the property line, there is an additional
25-foot of drainage easenent, high ground, before
t he | agoon actually begins, resulting in an
expanse of around 50 feet along the back of the
nonconform ng structure as it stands today from
buil ding to water.

In a sense, the hone does not abut the
| agoon but an easenent. This would indicate an
25-foot-to-conditioned-structure setback as a
reason given to the accommodati on that the
easenment al ready provides between the hone and
t he | agoon.

Criteria C. Because of these
conditions, the application of this ordinance to
the particul ar piece of property would
effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the

utilization of the property.

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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The application of this ordi nance to the
subj ect property may not or unreasonably restrict
the utilization of the property.

Per the applicant's letter of intent,
quote, The site location of the existing
structure unreasonably restricts the utilization
of the property without this variance. It seens
cl ear that during the construction of the hone,
the ordinance in question was either not in
effect or was not applied to this property, and
as the natural evolution of architecture over
time to inprove its quality and update its
usef ul ness becones inpossible without this
vari ance.

Criteria D The authorization of a
variance wll not be of substantial detrinment to
adj acent property or to the public good, and the
character of the zoning district will not be
harnmed by the granting of this variance.

The aut horization of this variance nay
not be of substantial detrinent to the adjacent
properties or the public good. The existing
buf fer beyond the 30-foot rear setback is
substantial. Per the applicant's letter of

I ntent, quote, the authorization of this variance

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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wll not be a detrinent to the adjacent property
or to the public good as the area in question is
in the rear of the lot beside a heavily treed

| agoon area and out of sight fromall adjacent
properties.

The encroachnent into the rear yard
woul d not be any closer than it already exists.
There is no substantial detrinent to the public
good as the overall area of new inpervious
surface in the rear setback is mninal.

Criteria E: Board of Zoning Appeal s
shall not grant a variance, the effect of which
woul d be to allow the establishnent of a use not
otherwi se permtted in a zoning district, to
extend physically a nonconform ng use of |and, or
to change the zoning district boundaries shown on
the official zoning nmap.

G anting of this variance woul d not
all ow the establishnent of a use not otherw se
permtted in the zoning district, extend
physi cally a nonconform ng use of |and, or change
the zoning district boundaries.

Per the applicant's letter of intent,
quote, The variance, if granted, would not allow

t he establishnent of a use not ot herw se

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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permtted in the zoning district. The current
| and use is conform ng, and there would be no
change to the zoning map with an approved

vari ance.

Criteria F: The fact that the property
may be utilized nore profitably should a variance
be granted shall not be considered grounds for a
vari ance.

The BZA may not consider property val ue
when considering this variance request.

Criteria G The need for this variance
shall not be the result of the applicant's own
actions.

The need for the variance nmay not be the
result of the applicant's own actions. The
subj ect property is legally nonconformng in
regards to setbacks.

Per the applicant's letter of intent,
gquote, There has been no work done on the
existing |ot.

Criteria H Ganting of this variance
wll not be contrary to the public or
nei ghbor hood interest nor will not adversely
affect other properties in the vicinity nor

interfere wwth the harnony, spirit, intent, and

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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pur poses of these regul ati ons.

Granting of this variance may not be
contrary to the public or neighborhood interest,
may not adversely affect other properties in the
vicinity, or interfere wwth the harnony, spirit,
I ntent, or purposes of these regul ations.

Per the applicant's letter of intent,
gquote, There is no contrary effect to the public
or nei ghborhood interest nor will not adversely
af fect other properties in the vicinity while
being in harnony with the spirit, intent, and
pur poses of these regul ati ons.

And criteria |I: Ganting of this
vari ance does not substantially conflict with the
conpr ehensi ve plan or the purposes of this
or di nance.

Ganting of this variance may not
substantially conflict with the conprehensive
pl an or the purposes of this ordi nance.

The Board of Zoning Appeal s may approve,
approve with conditions, or deny case nunber
BZA- 24- 000022 for the variance request for the
reduction of the required 30-foot rear setback
for approximately 86 square feet for proposed

renovations of an existing single-famly hone at

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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81 Bittern Court based on the BZA s findi ngs of
facts, unless additional information is deened
necessary to nmake an i nfornmed deci sion.

Staff has not received any letters in
regards to this case.

And | would also like to point out a few
things in the Town's code in regards to uncovered
stairs and at-grade patios. Pursuant to section
1264 in regards to setbacks, Uncovered stairs or
stair landings to building entrances may extend
up to 5 feet into any required setback.

Uncovered at-grade pati os may extend
i nto any required setback; however, they shal
mai ntain a m ni mum 10-foot di stance fromthe
property line. And uncovered decks nmay extend up
to 5 feet into any required rear yard set back.

This concludes staff's presentation.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY:  Thank you, Dan.
"Il ask you, Dan -- |'ll ask the applicant if
you don't know, but this drai nage easenent, what
Is there, a pipe under there or sonething?

MR VINCENT: [|'mnot sure. |
would refer to the applicant for that. Froma
site visit, it just |looked |like an enpty --

CHAI RMAN CASSI DY: Yeah. It | ooks

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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| i ke nothing, so it's hard to understand what
it's there for.

MR. VINCENT: It | ooked like an
enpty kind of buffer area.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: Ckay. Thank
you.

Any ot her questions for Dan?

MR. ADAMS: Yeah, | have one. The
proposed renovation, the closest point of the
proposed renovation to the setback |ine | ooks
like it's about 13 feet and change. What's the
cl osest point currently? | think it's the
existing staircase. How far is that fromthe
set back?

MR. VINCENT: So from what staff
saw, the existing staircase encroaches 15 feet, 9
I nches, into that required rear setback, which is
about 14 feet and 3 inches fromstaircase --

MR. ADAMS: So the proposal would
actually be further fromthe setback line -- its
cl osest point would be closer fromthe setback
line than it is currently?

MR. VINCENT: That's correct.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: O her questions?

Ckay. We'll hear fromthe

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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applicant. M. Rice, is it?

MR. RICE Yes, sir.

Thank you, everybody, and happy
hol i days. M nane is Randy -- Randol ph Rice.
| mat 4250 Hope Plantation Drive, Johns Island,
South Carolina, and I"'mwith Rice Architecture +
Interiors.

Qur client has owned this property for a
while, and it's been a great place for them
They' ve experienced Kiawah fromthis property,
and it's just gotten tired. And so this effort
Is to redo the decks, redo the exterior finishes.
And of course you'll see the addition basically
all ows the guest roomto have two ensuite guest
roons instead of one bathroomthat's shared. So
just sort of trying to bring the hone up to the
| evel of current anenities on Kiawah if you wll.

There is a -- as we've discussed,
there's the new conditioned wing off the bottom
back right, if you will. That's part of that
bedroom ensui te approach. |Instead of having an
open deck that's getting covered with | eaves,
it's going to be a covered deck so it's nuch nore
effective and usabl e.

And the rear stairs, we took care to

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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take the | anding area of that stair, anything
over a foot and a half, if you will, to keep
that -- above grade, to keep that as far away as
the original stair was fromthe property |ine.

And the covered deck that's there
currently, perhaps that's the nbst covered, nost
encroaching area. That's that 18-4, off the
current property line, and there's a deck above
that area that is part of the renovation of the
second floor, which doesn't pertain to you-all,
but that woul d be encl osed.

So there's not an open second | evel
deck, which got all the | eaves for the | ast
however many years for that house and created a
| ot of drainage problens.

So | think our case is fairly
straightforward. As you can inmagi ne, the house
was designed and built prior to these
regul ations, and so they built it where it nade
sense at the tinme to them And over tine,
regul ati ons nade sense to apply over these
properties.

And so our clients are caught between
sort of a rock and hard place. W have good,

valid regul ati ons, but we have a house that had

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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no control over those regulations, if you will,
and so now they're here to try to get a variance
totry to kind of fill inthat little gap where
you' ve got an ol der hone that really has sort

of -- a fairly specific way it could expand, and
it's going to require a variance to do it. And
wth that, |'ll |leave that for any questions.

CHAI RMVAN CASSI DY: Thank you,

M. Rice. Questions for M. Rice?

MR. ADAMS: WAs your question
answered or did he not know?

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: He i ndicated
t hat he doesn't know the answer either.

MR RICE Oh, in terns of why
there's that drai nage area behind the house, is
there a structure under it? | didn't come across
any reason why they have that. One of ny
argunments about this variance was that
technically this -- you know, that 30-foot
setback is for | agoon properties. Technically,
that part of the property is not next to the
| agoon. It's next to this easenent. There's a
requi red 25-foot setback.

So part of the argunent -- | don't want

to really go down there, but, you know, really

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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seens like it ought to have a 25-foot rear yard
setback. W still need a variance for these
other itens, so | don't think we need to go down
that path, but just --

CHAI RMAN CASSI DY: The effective
setback is way nore than the actual property line
set back.

MR RICE Yes, sir. | went out
there again today, and just the stair not being
germane to what's functionally affecting the
property, to the corner of the house right now,
the -- where the new stair is, if you wll,
there's a double colum. Fromthat colum
| ocation to the lagoon, it is 46 feet.

And then if -- taping again -- I'mnot a
surveyor, but taping fromthe estinmated corner of
t he new house addition on the bottom corner
there, it was going to be 50 plus, 52, 53 feet
still to the bank. So none of what we're doing
Is getting closer to that bank, you know, stair
being sort of the -- you know, sort of Kkinds of
projects with foundati ons and such make nmuch nore
di fference whether they're getting closer to that
bank, so we're keeping away fromthat.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: O her questions?
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Hearing none, |I'd entertain a notion.
MR. ROSENFELD: [I'll nake a notion.
Conpl etely out of character. | nove that we

approve this.

CHAI RMAN CASSI DY:  Thank you,

Larry. |s there a second?

MR. HANAN. |'Il|l second.

MR. ROSENFELD: | can throwin a
couple reasons if you care to. | nean, it's just

so far away fromthe | agoon. The easenent is
irrational to ne.

The only thing | don't buy is criteria
C, where allowing this expansion will effectively
prohi bit or unreasonably restrict the utilization
of the property. That's a crock because they can
use the property fine without ever doing that.

But aside fromthe rest, as long as they
don't touch sone of those great trees back there,
go right ahead, guys. Nobody's ever going to see
anything from any ot her place because of the far
station of the lot is basically a blind, you
know, | ocati on.

MR. TAYLOR: Just want to nake sure
| understand. You believe that it neets all the

criteria, just for the record?

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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MR. HANAN. Yes, for --

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: It has to neet
all of the criteria.

MR. ROSENFELD: Has to neet what?

M5. O LEARY: Has to neet all the
criteria, so you have to take C off the table
i ke you were tal king about.

MR. ROSENFELD: Am |1 still allowed
to make the notion even if | disagree with it? |
think I can.

CHAI RMAN CASSI DY:  Yeah, | think
you can too.

MR. ROSENFELD: It just depends on
what nmy vote nmay be, that's all.

MR. HANAN. 1'Il still second.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY:  Any further
di scussi on?

MR. ROSENFELD: | 1ove
bureaucracies. Plus the fact, you know, ny
vi si on may have conprom sed ny vi ew.

CHAI RMAN CASSIDY: Al right. Wth
no further discussion, Jay?

MR LEWS: Yes.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: Larry, yes.

MR. ROSENFELD. Yes.
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MR. HANAN: Yes.

M5. O LEARY: Yes.

VMR ADAMS:  Yes.

CHAI RMVAN CASSI DY:  And yes. So
notion i s unaninous. |t's approved because of
the effective setback due to the easenent. Al so,
It's a small encroachnment to start with. And as
Larry pointed out, you stand back there. No one
anywhere near that property is going to see
anyt hi ng because it's so wooded.

M5. O LEARY: |'ve never seen so
many trees on a property. | was just |ike, On,
Lord.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY:  So t hat
concl udes our work with this variance request.

"Il just nmention that we may or may not
have a January neeting. John is waiting for sone
addi ti onal information.

But let ne remnd you that, in
January and February, sonething that | tend to
forget, our neetings are the fourth Monday
I nstead of the third because the third Mondays in
January and February are hol i days.

MR. TAYLOR: That was correct. The

only note is that we will probably not have a
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January based on what | just discussed with
Dani el that we may not have a case as an update
for the January neeting.

So typically at the begi nning of the
year, we would do our review of the rules and
procedures. Since that, we mght just bring that
to the February neeting, as opposed to having a
neeting where there's no itens to consider.

So just stand by for the January date.
|f there is, we also have the rules and
procedures for you to review annually |Iike we
typically do.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: GCkay. So we nay
have a January neeting; we're just not sure?

MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, | don't believe
we will, but nore than likely we'll be in
February for the rules and procedures.

MR LEWS:. Have you published the
dates for the entire year?

MR. TAYLOR. Yes. Town Counci l
just approved that at their Decenber neeting, so
we'll get that circulated to you guys if you have
not seen that for the January, yep.

MR LEWS: Geat.

CHAI RVAN CASSI DY: Great. Anything

Clark Bolen, Inc.
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Dani el ?
We stand adj ourned then. Thank

(The neeting was adj ourned at
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE

|, TERI L. KENNELLY, Registered Professional

Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State
of South Carolina at Large, do hereby certify
that | correctly reported the within-entitled
matter and that the foregoing is a full, true and
correct transcription of ny shorthand notes of
the testinony and/or other oral proceedi ngs had
in the said matter.

| further certify that |I am neither
related to nor counsel for any party to the cause
pendi ng or interested in the events thereof.

Wtness ny hand, | have hereunto affi xed
my official seal this 30th day of Decenber, 2024,
at Charl eston, Charleston County, South Carolina.

Teri L. Kennelly, RPR CRR

My conmi ssi on expires
January 8, 2029
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                 1                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Okay.  Good



                 2    afternoon, everyone.  I'd like to call to order



                 3    this December 16th, 2024, meeting of the Town of



                 4    Kiawah Island Board of Zoning Appeals.



                 5             I'm Frank Cassidy, the board chair.  In



                 6    addition to myself, the members hearing your case



                 7    today are Jay Lewis, Larry Rosenfeld, Morris



                 8    Hanan, Lin O'Leary, and Phil Adams.  And here



                 9    from staff are our planning director, John



                10    Taylor, and Dan Vincent from our planning staff.



                11    And Boone Aiken is our legal counsel.



                12             Our case rulings from this and any BZA



                13    meeting are available for public review and



                14    inspection during normal business hours at the



                15    Town Hall.



                16             Since our meeting is being conducted



                17    virtually via Zoom, please be reminded that in



                18    order to obtain a clean and clear record for



                19    persons listening live, it's important that all



                20    participants not speak over one another.  I'd



                21    like -- if you'd like to speak, please raise your



                22    hand, I'll recognize you, and you can come to the



                23    mike.



                24             At this time I'd like to explain to the



                25    public the workings of the BZA.  The Board of
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                 1    Zoning Appeals is a quasi-judicial body,



                 2    established to interpret and grant relief from



                 3    the zoning ordinance.  The Board of Zoning



                 4    Appeals has jurisdiction over three types of



                 5    cases:  Appeals, variances, which is what we'll



                 6    be considering today, and special exceptions.



                 7             Appeals are heard regarding



                 8    administrative actions or decisions by the zoning



                 9    administrator or staff.  Variances may be granted



                10    when strict application of the zoning ordinance



                11    would cause an unnecessary hardship.



                12             This board's actions must be based on



                13    specific standards, as contained in SC Local



                14    Government Planning Enabling Act of 1994 and our



                15    Town's zoning ordinance.



                16             Special exceptions allow the board to



                17    permit uses if certain conditions as contained in



                18    the zoning ordinance are met.



                19             A simple majority vote of the quorum



                20    present is required to grant a variance or to



                21    overturn the decision of the zoning administrator



                22    in an appeal or to grant a special exception.



                23             Because today's hearing is a public



                24    fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with



                25    the Freedom of Information Act and SC Code
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                 1    6-29-70.  15 days prior to this hearing, an



                 2    announcement was printed in the Post and Courier,



                 3    a sign was posted on or near the designated



                 4    property, and a notice was mailed to the



                 5    applicant or representative, to persons --



                 6    residents within 500 feet of the application, and



                 7    to parties of interest.



                 8             Persons, organizations, and the news



                 9    media that have requested declaration of our



                10    meeting have also been notified.  These are the



                11    only folks who are required to be served under



                12    the Freedom of Information Act.



                13             Our purpose today is for interested



                14    parties to be heard in order to assist the board



                15    in gathering evidence pertinent to the case.  If



                16    members of the BZA feel the need for further



                17    information to clarify a case, the board has the



                18    authority to subpoena witnesses.



                19             In addition to testimony, our board has



                20    been presented written information submitted to



                21    the staff by the applicant or their agent for



                22    each case.  This information is now considered to



                23    be evidence and is entered into the permanent



                24    record of this body.  It's assumed that it is



                25    complete, true, and accurate.
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                 1             Also, we've been presented data



                 2    assembled by the staff for the purpose of



                 3    clarifying the location and the effect on



                 4    surrounding property.



                 5             Our board is empowered to approve,



                 6    approve with conditions, or deny a request.  In



                 7    granting a variance, the Board of Zoning Appeals



                 8    may attach to it such conditions regarding



                 9    location, character, and other features of the



                10    proposed building structure or use as the board



                11    may consider advisable to protect established



                12    property values in the surrounding area or to



                13    promote the public health, safety, and general



                14    welfare.



                15             We are also authorized to defer a case



                16    should there be a need to obtain additional



                17    information.



                18             If an applicant's request is approved



                19    for a special exemption, a variance, or an appeal



                20    of the decision by the zoning administrator, they



                21    must go to the Town of Kiawah Island to apply for



                22    permits.  Variances and special exceptions



                23    granted by the BZA are valid for 12 months after



                24    this meeting.



                25             However, if an applicant's request is
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                 1    disapproved and they wish to appeal the decision



                 2    of this board concerning their case, appeals must



                 3    be addressed to the Circuit Court.



                 4             SC Code 6-29-820 states that the appeal



                 5    must be filed by the applicant within 30 days



                 6    after the decision of the board is mailed to



                 7    them.  Failure to file an appeal within the time



                 8    limit deprives the Court of the jurisdiction to



                 9    hear this matter.



                10             For the case, staff will present



                11    information, the applicant will present their



                12    case, and we'll hear from others, if any, who may



                13    wish to speak.  Be reminded to direct your



                14    comments to the board and not to the applicant or



                15    other speakers.



                16             To expedite the meeting, I'd ask that



                17    all persons who intend to speak today to stand,



                18    and Boone will administer the oath.



                19                  (Oath administered to all



                20    speakers.)



                21                  MR. AIKEN:  Thank you, everyone.



                22                  Mr. Chairman, I'll turn it back



                23    over.



                24                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  I'll now call



                25    case BZA-24-000022 at 81 Bittern Court.
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                 1             First we'll hear from staff, then the



                 2    applicant, and then others, if any.  All speakers



                 3    should come to the podium, state your name and



                 4    current address for the record before presenting



                 5    testimony.



                 6             I'll limit any comments by the public to



                 7    three minutes and the applicant will have a



                 8    chance for rebuttal, if necessary.



                 9             Dan, the floor is yours.



                10                  MR. VINCENT:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.



                11             Members of the BZA, we have one case



                12    today, case number BZA-24-000022.  The applicant



                13    and property owner, William and Anne Sherrill,



                14    being represented by Randy Rice of Rice



                15    Architecture, are requesting a variance for the



                16    reduction of the required 30-foot rear setback by



                17    approximately 86 square feet for proposed



                18    renovations of an existing single-family home.



                19             The lot 81 Bittern Court is located in



                20    the R-1 residential zoning district.  The lot



                21    size is approximately 24,556 square feet or .57



                22    acres in size.  The TMS number for the subject



                23    property is 207-08-00-045.



                24             Per Charleston County records, the lot



                25    was acquired by William and Anne Sherrill on
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                 1    May 15th of 2009, and the home was constructed in



                 2    1978, according to Charleston County records.



                 3             Pursuant to the Town of Kiawah Island's



                 4    Land Use Planning and Zoning Ordinance, the R-1



                 5    zoning district does require a 25-foot front



                 6    setback off of Bittern Court, 15-foot side



                 7    setbacks on either side, and a 30-foot rear



                 8    setback.  The maximum lot coverage for the



                 9    subject property is 33 percent.



                10             Here's a zoning map of the subject



                11    property.  The adjacent properties to the south,



                12    west, and across the lagoon are located in the



                13    R-1 zoning district, and directly across from the



                14    subject property sits an R20 zoning district.



                15    Here is a Charleston County GIS aerial view.



                16             Staff took a few photos on



                17    November 27th, 2024.  Signs were posted in



                18    accordance to the Board of Zoning Appeals rules



                19    and procedures.  Again the request is for 86



                20    square feet for proposed renovations.  Picture of



                21    the front.  Adjacent properties across the street



                22    and to the left.  Here's the subject property,



                23    which is the rear.  A few more pictures of the



                24    rear and the side.



                25             The applicant's proposed plans include
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                 1    renovations of the existing single-family home,



                 2    including relocating a staircase in the rear yard



                 3    and converting an existing open deck into



                 4    conditioned area that is currently beyond the



                 5    rear setback.



                 6             The home is currently nonconforming in



                 7    regards to setbacks.  As you can see on the slide



                 8    in front of you, the left is an existing site



                 9    plan.  Portions of that site plan are encroaching



                10    into that rear setback.



                11             The existing staircase currently



                12    encroaches approximately 15 feet, 9 inches, into



                13    the required rear 30-foot setback.  The distance



                14    from the existing staircase to the rear lot line



                15    is approximately 14 feet, 3 inches.  The total



                16    encroachment of the existing staircase is



                17    approximately 70 square feet.  And existing



                18    staircase, you can see my cursor, is this box



                19    right here.



                20             The proposed staircase, which is the



                21    gray area right here, it will be relocated



                22    further south and will encroach approximately 16



                23    feet, 1 inches, into the required 30-foot



                24    setback.  The distance from the proposed



                25    staircase to the rear lot line is approximately
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                 1    13 feet, 11 inches.



                 2             The total encroachment of the proposed



                 3    staircase is approximately 43 square feet.  The



                 4    proposed plans reduce the encroachment by



                 5    approximately 28 square feet at this particular



                 6    location.



                 7             The existing open deck, which is south,



                 8    right here, in this gray area, extends



                 9    approximately 5 feet, 5 inches into the required



                10    rear 30-foot setback.



                11             The proposed conditioned covered space



                12    will encroach approximately 5 feet into the



                13    required rear setback.  The proposed renovation



                14    of the existing deck to screen porch is



                15    approximately 11 square feet.  The proposed new



                16    conditioned area encroachment is approximately 33



                17    square feet.  The total square footage



                18    encroachment of the existing deck to conditioned



                19    or covered space is approximately 44 square feet.



                20    The total encroachment of both the staircase and



                21    conditioned area is approximately 86 square feet.



                22             The applicant's current total lot



                23    coverage is 24.3 percent, and the applicant's



                24    proposed plans include 7,283 square feet, with a



                25    total proposed lot coverage of 29.7 percent.  The
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                 1    subject property is allowed a maximum coverage of



                 2    33 percent.



                 3             The BZA may grant a variance only if



                 4    exceptional circumstances exist and where



                 5    practical difficulty or uncertain -- or



                 6    unnecessary hardship is so substantial, serious,



                 7    and compelling that relaxation of the general



                 8    restrictions ought to be granted.



                 9             No grant shall be granted unless the



                10    applicant shall show and the BZA shall find that



                11    the following conditions are met.



                12             Criteria A:  There are extraordinary and



                13    exceptional conditions pertaining to the



                14    particular piece of property.



                15             There may be extraordinary and



                16    exceptional conditions on this property.  The



                17    unique shape of the lot and the orientation of



                18    the home on the lot are exceptional conditions.



                19    The home is also nonconforming in regards to



                20    setbacks.



                21             The lagoon is located roughly 52 feet



                22    from the required 30-foot rear setback.  The



                23    space between the rear lot line and the lagoon



                24    provides additional screening for the home.



                25             Per the applicant's letter of intent,
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                 1    quote, The lot is irregular in shape and heavily



                 2    treed.  The organic shape of the easement creates



                 3    an additional condition of not having a rear lot



                 4    line that is parallel to the rear of the house



                 5    frame.  And while the house does respond to the



                 6    change in lot profile, the logical addition fits



                 7    a 25-foot setback, much like the existing home.



                 8             It is possible, due to the large number



                 9    of trees throughout the site, that the home was



                10    simply located in the most tree friendly



                11    location.  And since moving the house closer to



                12    the large easement had only a positive effect on



                13    its neighbors; regardless, there is an extensive



                14    nonconformity that exists across much of the rear



                15    of this home, resulting in extraordinary and



                16    exceptional conditions.



                17             Criteria B:  These conditions do not



                18    generally apply to other properties in the



                19    vicinity.



                20             These conditions may be unique to the



                21    subject property and may not generally apply to



                22    other properties in the vicinity.  The property



                23    is located in the R-1 zoning district.  Adjacent



                24    properties along Bittern Court are also located



                25    in an R-1 zoning district.  The lot sits adjacent
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                 1    to a lagoon to the north and east.  Properties



                 2    across the lagoon are located in the R20



                 3    residential zoning district.



                 4             Existing structures in the vicinity may



                 5    or may not have similar encroachments based on



                 6    these setback standards.



                 7             Per the applicant's letter of intent,



                 8    quote, In addition to a setback requirement of 30



                 9    feet to the property line, there is an additional



                10    25-foot of drainage easement, high ground, before



                11    the lagoon actually begins, resulting in an



                12    expanse of around 50 feet along the back of the



                13    nonconforming structure as it stands today from



                14    building to water.



                15             In a sense, the home does not abut the



                16    lagoon but an easement.  This would indicate an



                17    25-foot-to-conditioned-structure setback as a



                18    reason given to the accommodation that the



                19    easement already provides between the home and



                20    the lagoon.



                21             Criteria C:  Because of these



                22    conditions, the application of this ordinance to



                23    the particular piece of property would



                24    effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the



                25    utilization of the property.
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                 1             The application of this ordinance to the



                 2    subject property may not or unreasonably restrict



                 3    the utilization of the property.



                 4             Per the applicant's letter of intent,



                 5    quote, The site location of the existing



                 6    structure unreasonably restricts the utilization



                 7    of the property without this variance.  It seems



                 8    clear that during the construction of the home,



                 9    the ordinance in question was either not in



                10    effect or was not applied to this property, and



                11    as the natural evolution of architecture over



                12    time to improve its quality and update its



                13    usefulness becomes impossible without this



                14    variance.



                15             Criteria D:  The authorization of a



                16    variance will not be of substantial detriment to



                17    adjacent property or to the public good, and the



                18    character of the zoning district will not be



                19    harmed by the granting of this variance.



                20             The authorization of this variance may



                21    not be of substantial detriment to the adjacent



                22    properties or the public good.  The existing



                23    buffer beyond the 30-foot rear setback is



                24    substantial.  Per the applicant's letter of



                25    intent, quote, the authorization of this variance
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                 1    will not be a detriment to the adjacent property



                 2    or to the public good as the area in question is



                 3    in the rear of the lot beside a heavily treed



                 4    lagoon area and out of sight from all adjacent



                 5    properties.



                 6             The encroachment into the rear yard



                 7    would not be any closer than it already exists.



                 8    There is no substantial detriment to the public



                 9    good as the overall area of new impervious



                10    surface in the rear setback is minimal.



                11             Criteria E:  Board of Zoning Appeals



                12    shall not grant a variance, the effect of which



                13    would be to allow the establishment of a use not



                14    otherwise permitted in a zoning district, to



                15    extend physically a nonconforming use of land, or



                16    to change the zoning district boundaries shown on



                17    the official zoning map.



                18             Granting of this variance would not



                19    allow the establishment of a use not otherwise



                20    permitted in the zoning district, extend



                21    physically a nonconforming use of land, or change



                22    the zoning district boundaries.



                23             Per the applicant's letter of intent,



                24    quote, The variance, if granted, would not allow



                25    the establishment of a use not otherwise
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                 1    permitted in the zoning district.  The current



                 2    land use is conforming, and there would be no



                 3    change to the zoning map with an approved



                 4    variance.



                 5             Criteria F:  The fact that the property



                 6    may be utilized more profitably should a variance



                 7    be granted shall not be considered grounds for a



                 8    variance.



                 9             The BZA may not consider property value



                10    when considering this variance request.



                11             Criteria G:  The need for this variance



                12    shall not be the result of the applicant's own



                13    actions.



                14             The need for the variance may not be the



                15    result of the applicant's own actions.  The



                16    subject property is legally nonconforming in



                17    regards to setbacks.



                18             Per the applicant's letter of intent,



                19    quote, There has been no work done on the



                20    existing lot.



                21             Criteria H:  Granting of this variance



                22    will not be contrary to the public or



                23    neighborhood interest nor will not adversely



                24    affect other properties in the vicinity nor



                25    interfere with the harmony, spirit, intent, and
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                 1    purposes of these regulations.



                 2             Granting of this variance may not be



                 3    contrary to the public or neighborhood interest,



                 4    may not adversely affect other properties in the



                 5    vicinity, or interfere with the harmony, spirit,



                 6    intent, or purposes of these regulations.



                 7             Per the applicant's letter of intent,



                 8    quote, There is no contrary effect to the public



                 9    or neighborhood interest nor will not adversely



                10    affect other properties in the vicinity while



                11    being in harmony with the spirit, intent, and



                12    purposes of these regulations.



                13             And criteria I:  Granting of this



                14    variance does not substantially conflict with the



                15    comprehensive plan or the purposes of this



                16    ordinance.



                17             Granting of this variance may not



                18    substantially conflict with the comprehensive



                19    plan or the purposes of this ordinance.



                20             The Board of Zoning Appeals may approve,



                21    approve with conditions, or deny case number



                22    BZA-24-000022 for the variance request for the



                23    reduction of the required 30-foot rear setback



                24    for approximately 86 square feet for proposed



                25    renovations of an existing single-family home at
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                 1    81 Bittern Court based on the BZA's findings of



                 2    facts, unless additional information is deemed



                 3    necessary to make an informed decision.



                 4             Staff has not received any letters in



                 5    regards to this case.



                 6             And I would also like to point out a few



                 7    things in the Town's code in regards to uncovered



                 8    stairs and at-grade patios.  Pursuant to section



                 9    1264 in regards to setbacks, Uncovered stairs or



                10    stair landings to building entrances may extend



                11    up to 5 feet into any required setback.



                12             Uncovered at-grade patios may extend



                13    into any required setback; however, they shall



                14    maintain a minimum 10-foot distance from the



                15    property line.  And uncovered decks may extend up



                16    to 5 feet into any required rear yard setback.



                17             This concludes staff's presentation.



                18                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Thank you, Dan.



                19    I'll ask you, Dan -- I'll ask the applicant if



                20    you don't know, but this drainage easement, what



                21    is there, a pipe under there or something?



                22                  MR. VINCENT:  I'm not sure.  I



                23    would refer to the applicant for that.  From a



                24    site visit, it just looked like an empty --



                25                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Yeah.  It looks
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                 1    like nothing, so it's hard to understand what



                 2    it's there for.



                 3                  MR. VINCENT:  It looked like an



                 4    empty kind of buffer area.



                 5                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Okay.  Thank



                 6    you.



                 7             Any other questions for Dan?



                 8                  MR. ADAMS:  Yeah, I have one.  The



                 9    proposed renovation, the closest point of the



                10    proposed renovation to the setback line looks



                11    like it's about 13 feet and change.  What's the



                12    closest point currently?  I think it's the



                13    existing staircase.  How far is that from the



                14    setback?



                15                  MR. VINCENT:  So from what staff



                16    saw, the existing staircase encroaches 15 feet, 9



                17    inches, into that required rear setback, which is



                18    about 14 feet and 3 inches from staircase --



                19                  MR. ADAMS:  So the proposal would



                20    actually be further from the setback line -- its



                21    closest point would be closer from the setback



                22    line than it is currently?



                23                  MR. VINCENT:  That's correct.



                24                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Other questions?



                25                  Okay.  We'll hear from the
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                 1    applicant.  Mr. Rice, is it?



                 2                  MR. RICE:  Yes, sir.



                 3                  Thank you, everybody, and happy



                 4    holidays.  My name is Randy -- Randolph Rice.



                 5    I'm at 4250 Hope Plantation Drive, Johns Island,



                 6    South Carolina, and I'm with Rice Architecture +



                 7    Interiors.



                 8             Our client has owned this property for a



                 9    while, and it's been a great place for them.



                10    They've experienced Kiawah from this property,



                11    and it's just gotten tired.  And so this effort



                12    is to redo the decks, redo the exterior finishes.



                13    And of course you'll see the addition basically



                14    allows the guest room to have two ensuite guest



                15    rooms instead of one bathroom that's shared.  So



                16    just sort of trying to bring the home up to the



                17    level of current amenities on Kiawah if you will.



                18             There is a -- as we've discussed,



                19    there's the new conditioned wing off the bottom



                20    back right, if you will.  That's part of that



                21    bedroom ensuite approach.  Instead of having an



                22    open deck that's getting covered with leaves,



                23    it's going to be a covered deck so it's much more



                24    effective and usable.



                25             And the rear stairs, we took care to
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                 1    take the landing area of that stair, anything



                 2    over a foot and a half, if you will, to keep



                 3    that -- above grade, to keep that as far away as



                 4    the original stair was from the property line.



                 5             And the covered deck that's there



                 6    currently, perhaps that's the most covered, most



                 7    encroaching area.  That's that 18-4, off the



                 8    current property line, and there's a deck above



                 9    that area that is part of the renovation of the



                10    second floor, which doesn't pertain to you-all,



                11    but that would be enclosed.



                12             So there's not an open second level



                13    deck, which got all the leaves for the last



                14    however many years for that house and created a



                15    lot of drainage problems.



                16             So I think our case is fairly



                17    straightforward.  As you can imagine, the house



                18    was designed and built prior to these



                19    regulations, and so they built it where it made



                20    sense at the time to them.  And over time,



                21    regulations made sense to apply over these



                22    properties.



                23             And so our clients are caught between



                24    sort of a rock and hard place.  We have good,



                25    valid regulations, but we have a house that had
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                 1    no control over those regulations, if you will,



                 2    and so now they're here to try to get a variance



                 3    to try to kind of fill in that little gap where



                 4    you've got an older home that really has sort



                 5    of -- a fairly specific way it could expand, and



                 6    it's going to require a variance to do it.  And



                 7    with that, I'll leave that for any questions.



                 8                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Thank you,



                 9    Mr. Rice.  Questions for Mr. Rice?



                10                  MR. ADAMS:  Was your question



                11    answered or did he not know?



                12                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  He indicated



                13    that he doesn't know the answer either.



                14                  MR. RICE:  Oh, in terms of why



                15    there's that drainage area behind the house, is



                16    there a structure under it?  I didn't come across



                17    any reason why they have that.  One of my



                18    arguments about this variance was that



                19    technically this -- you know, that 30-foot



                20    setback is for lagoon properties.  Technically,



                21    that part of the property is not next to the



                22    lagoon.  It's next to this easement.  There's a



                23    required 25-foot setback.



                24             So part of the argument -- I don't want



                25    to really go down there, but, you know, really
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                 1    seems like it ought to have a 25-foot rear yard



                 2    setback.  We still need a variance for these



                 3    other items, so I don't think we need to go down



                 4    that path, but just --



                 5                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  The effective



                 6    setback is way more than the actual property line



                 7    setback.



                 8                  MR. RICE:  Yes, sir.  I went out



                 9    there again today, and just the stair not being



                10    germane to what's functionally affecting the



                11    property, to the corner of the house right now,



                12    the -- where the new stair is, if you will,



                13    there's a double column.  From that column



                14    location to the lagoon, it is 46 feet.



                15             And then if -- taping again -- I'm not a



                16    surveyor, but taping from the estimated corner of



                17    the new house addition on the bottom corner



                18    there, it was going to be 50 plus, 52, 53 feet



                19    still to the bank.  So none of what we're doing



                20    is getting closer to that bank, you know, stair



                21    being sort of the -- you know, sort of kinds of



                22    projects with foundations and such make much more



                23    difference whether they're getting closer to that



                24    bank, so we're keeping away from that.



                25                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Other questions?
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                 1    Hearing none, I'd entertain a motion.



                 2                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I'll make a motion.



                 3    Completely out of character.  I move that we



                 4    approve this.



                 5                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Thank you,



                 6    Larry.  Is there a second?



                 7                  MR. HANAN:  I'll second.



                 8                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I can throw in a



                 9    couple reasons if you care to.  I mean, it's just



                10    so far away from the lagoon.  The easement is



                11    irrational to me.



                12             The only thing I don't buy is criteria



                13    C, where allowing this expansion will effectively



                14    prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization



                15    of the property.  That's a crock because they can



                16    use the property fine without ever doing that.



                17             But aside from the rest, as long as they



                18    don't touch some of those great trees back there,



                19    go right ahead, guys.  Nobody's ever going to see



                20    anything from any other place because of the far



                21    station of the lot is basically a blind, you



                22    know, location.



                23                  MR. TAYLOR:  Just want to make sure



                24    I understand.  You believe that it meets all the



                25    criteria, just for the record?
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                 1                  MR. HANAN:  Yes, for --



                 2                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  It has to meet



                 3    all of the criteria.



                 4                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Has to meet what?



                 5                  MS. O'LEARY:  Has to meet all the



                 6    criteria, so you have to take C off the table



                 7    like you were talking about.



                 8                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Am I still allowed



                 9    to make the motion even if I disagree with it?  I



                10    think I can.



                11                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Yeah, I think



                12    you can too.



                13                  MR. ROSENFELD:  It just depends on



                14    what my vote may be, that's all.



                15                  MR. HANAN:  I'll still second.



                16                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Any further



                17    discussion?



                18                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I love



                19    bureaucracies.  Plus the fact, you know, my



                20    vision may have compromised my view.



                21                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  All right.  With



                22    no further discussion, Jay?



                23                  MR. LEWIS:  Yes.



                24                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Larry, yes.



                25                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes.
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                 1                  MR. HANAN:  Yes.



                 2                  MS. O'LEARY:  Yes.



                 3                  MR. ADAMS:  Yes.



                 4                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  And yes.  So



                 5    motion is unanimous.  It's approved because of



                 6    the effective setback due to the easement.  Also,



                 7    it's a small encroachment to start with.  And as



                 8    Larry pointed out, you stand back there.  No one



                 9    anywhere near that property is going to see



                10    anything because it's so wooded.



                11                  MS. O'LEARY:  I've never seen so



                12    many trees on a property.  I was just like, Oh,



                13    Lord.



                14                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  So that



                15    concludes our work with this variance request.



                16             I'll just mention that we may or may not



                17    have a January meeting.  John is waiting for some



                18    additional information.



                19             But let me remind you that, in



                20    January and February, something that I tend to



                21    forget, our meetings are the fourth Monday



                22    instead of the third because the third Mondays in



                23    January and February are holidays.



                24                  MR. TAYLOR:  That was correct.  The



                25    only note is that we will probably not have a
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                 1    January based on what I just discussed with



                 2    Daniel that we may not have a case as an update



                 3    for the January meeting.



                 4             So typically at the beginning of the



                 5    year, we would do our review of the rules and



                 6    procedures.  Since that, we might just bring that



                 7    to the February meeting, as opposed to having a



                 8    meeting where there's no items to consider.



                 9             So just stand by for the January date.



                10    If there is, we also have the rules and



                11    procedures for you to review annually like we



                12    typically do.



                13                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Okay.  So we may



                14    have a January meeting; we're just not sure?



                15                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, I don't believe



                16    we will, but more than likely we'll be in



                17    February for the rules and procedures.



                18                  MR. LEWIS:  Have you published the



                19    dates for the entire year?



                20                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.  Town Council



                21    just approved that at their December meeting, so



                22    we'll get that circulated to you guys if you have



                23    not seen that for the January, yep.



                24                  MR. LEWIS:  Great.



                25                  CHAIRMAN CASSIDY:  Great.  Anything
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                 1    else, John or Daniel?



                 2             Okay.  We stand adjourned then.  Thank



                 3    you, everyone.



                 4                  (The meeting was adjourned at



                 5    1:35 P.M.)
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